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This is a proceeding for the assessnment of a Class |
adm ni strative penalty under Section 311(b)(6)(B)(i) of the
Cl ean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 8§ 1321(b)(6)(B)(i). The proceeding
is governed by the Environnental Protection Agency's Proposed
40 C.F. R Part 28, Non-APA Consolidated Rules of Practice for
Adm nistrative Assessnment of Civil Penalties ("the
Consol i dated Rules"), 56 Fed. Reg. 29,996 (July 1, 1991), used
as procedural guidance for Class | admnistrative penalty
proceedi ngs under Section 311 of the Clean Water Act, 33
U.S.C. §1321. 57 Fed. Reqg. 52,704, 52,705 (Novenber 4, 1992).

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

Section 311(j)(1) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C

81321(j)(1), provides for the issuance of regul ations



“establishing procedures, nethods, and equi pnmrent and ot her
requi renments for equipnment to prevent discharges of oil and
hazar dous substances from vessels and from onshore and

of fshore facilities, and to contain such discharges . . . .~

The inmplenenting regul ations, found at 40 C.F. R Part
112, apply to

owners or operators of non-transportation-rel ated

onshore and offshore facilities engaged in drilling,

produci ng, gathering, storing, processing, refining,

transferring, distributing or consum ng oil and oi
products, and which, due to their |ocation, could
reasonably be expected to discharge oil in harnful
gquantities . . . into or upon the navigable waters
of the United States or adjoining shorelines.
40 C F. R Section 112.1(b).

Under 40 C.F. R Section 112.3, the owner or operator of
an onshore facility that is subject to 40 CF. R Part 112 nust
prepare a Spill Prevention Control and Counterneasure ("SPCC")
plan in accordance with 40 C.F. R Section 112.7 not later than
six months after the facility began operations, or by July 10,
1974, whichever is |later, and nust inplenment that SPCC pl an
not later than one year after the facility began operations,

or by January 10, 1975, whichever is later.

PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

The Unit Manager of Energency Response and Site Cl eanup
Unit No. 1 of the Ofice of Environnmental Cleanup of Region 10
of the United States Environnental Protection Agency
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(Complainant) initiated this action on Septenber 30, 1997, by
i ssuing an adm nistrative conplaint to Nondalton \Water
Treatment Plant, (Respondent) alleging that Respondent
violated the G| Pollution Prevention Regulations at 40 C. F.R
Part 112 and the Clean Water Act. The letter acconpanying the
adm ni strative conplaint provided notice that failure to
respond to the admi nistrative conplaint within thirty days
would result in the entry of a default order, and inforned the
Respondent of its right to a hearing and of the opportunity to
seek an extension of the thirty-day period for filing a
response.

By menorandum dated October 2, 1997, the undersigned was
desi gnated as Presiding Oficer in this matter pursuant to
§28.16(h) of the Consolidated Rules.

DETERM NATI ON REGARDI NG DEFAULT

Under Section 28.20 of the Consolidated Rules, Respondent
had thirty days fromits receipt of the adm nistrative
conplaint to file a response, unless the deadline was extended
under Section 28.20(b)(1) for the purpose of engaging in
informal settlenment negotiations.

No response was filed by the Respondent. There is no
indication in the adm nistrative record of any extensions of

time. The response was therefore due approxi mately October



31, 1997, depending on the actual date the admi nistrative
conpl ai nt was received by Nondalton Water Treatnent Pl ant.
The Conplainant filed a Motion for Default Judgnent on May 7,
1998. No reply to the notion was filed by the Respondent.
The Respondent has therefore failed to respond to the
adm ni strative conplaint in a tinely fashion and failed to
provi de any explanation for not filing a tinmely response.
Respondent's failure to file a tinely response to the
adm ni strative conplaint automatically triggers the default
proceedi ngs provision of the Consolidated Rules. Section
28.21(a) of the Consolidated Rul es provides:
Determ nation of Liability. If the Respondent fails
tinmely to respond pursuant to 828.20(a) or (b) of
this Part . . . the Presiding Oficer, on his own

initiative, shall immedi ately determ ne whether the
conpl ai nant has stated a cause of action.

DETERM NATI ON WHETHER THE COVMPLAI NT STATES A CAUSE OF ACTI ON

To state a cause of action against the Respondent under
Section 311 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1321, and 40
C.F. R Section 112.3, Conplainant nust allege that the
Respondent is the owner or operator of an onshore facility
that could reasonably be expected to discharge oil in harnfu
guantities into or upon the navigable waters of the United

States or adjoining shorelines, and that the Respondent has



failed to prepare a SPCC plan within six nonths after the
facility began operation.?

The term “owner or operator” as it applies to an onshore
facility is defined in Section 311(a)(6) of the Clean Water
Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(a)(6), and 40 C.F. R Section 112.2 as
“any person owning or operating” the facility. “Person” is
defined in turn in Section 311(a)(7) of the Clean Water Act
and 40 C.F.R. Section 112.2 to include “an individual, firm
corporation, association, and a partnership.”

The adm ni strative conplaint issued to the Respondent
al |l eges as foll ows:

(1) Respondent Nondal ton Water Treatnent Pl ant
(“Respondent”) is a non corporation organi zed under the
| aws of Alaska with a place of business |ocated at or
near Nondal ton, Al aska. Respondent is a person within
t he neaning of Section 311(a)(7) of the Clean Water Act
and 40 C.F.R Section 112.2.

While the adm nistrative conplaint alleges that the
Respondent is a “person” within the meaning of Section
311(a)(7) of the Clean Water Act and 40 C.F. R Section 112.2,
the specific facts alleged, that the Respondent is a “non

corporation,” are not sufficient to show that the Respondent

falls within the relevant statutory and regulatory definitions

& her violations that could be all eged under Section 311
of the Clean Water Act and 40 C.F. R Section 112 are omtted,
in the interests of sinplicity of exposition.
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of “person.” To the contrary, they suggest that the
Respondent is not a “person” as the termis defined for the
pur poses of Section 311 of the Clean Water Act and 40 C.F. R
Part 112. The Respondent is presumably not an individual, and
is alleged not to be a corporation. No facts are all eged

whi ch would allow nme to determ ne that the Respondent is a
firm an association, or a partnershinp.

Being unable to find that the Respondent is a “person,”
nmust determ ne that the adm nistrative conplaint fails to
state a cause of action.

Section 28.21(a)(2) of the Consolidated Rul es provides
that if the Presiding Oficer determ nes that the conpl ai nant
has not stated a cause of action, the Presiding Oficer shal
either allow the conplainant to amend the adm nistrative
conpl ai nt pursuant to Section 28.18(b)(2) of the Consoli dated
Rul es, or recommend that the Regional Adm nistrator wthdraw
the conplaint. Under the circunstances of this case, where
t he Respondent has not filed a response to the admnistrative
conpl aint, and where the Conplainant may well be able to anend
the conplaint so that it states a cause of action, it is
appropriate to allow the Conplainant to anend the

adm ni strative conpl ai nt.



ORDER
Pursuant to Section 28.18(a)(2) of the Consoli dated
Rul es, the Conplainant is allowed thirty days fromthe date of
this order to file an anmended adm nistrative conplaint in this

matter.

[ s/
Steven W Anderson
Presiding Oficer

Dat e: June 3, 1998



